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{7. DESCRIPTION

[Check One)

CONDITION X Excelient {7} Good {7 Fair [] Deateriorated ) Ruins [ Unexposed
(Check Dne) {Chack One)
[[] Ahered {X Unaltared [] Moved X Origina! Site

DESCRIBE THE FRESENT AND ORIGINAL (If known} PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Designated a Naticnal Historic Landmark February 1972, Oatlands
included the house and approximately 300 acres. [t was nominated to
the National Register of Historic Places 21 August 1969 by the Virginia
Historic Landmark Commission. Recently through easements and gifts
thils district has been trebled in acreage to include more of the environ-
ment that has been assoclated with George Carter's plantation.

Prior to the initial nomination, three easements were accepted by
the Virginia CQutdoors Foundation to maintain the surrounding open space.
Acquisition of two properties (Oatland Mills and Mountain Gap Schoel) and
pending easements on the Church of Our Savior and additional land, all

- originally part of Oatlands, require the expansion of the already desig-

nated district. Combining the National Trust properties with the areas
under easement creates a contiguous district.

Expansion of the district permits presentation of a visually inte-
grated ensemble to the public. All of the areas and structures cited

" in the praposed expansion are related historically. The proposed dis-
‘trict delineates the operational center of Carter's plantation. Major

portions of the proposed district have been recognized by the federal
government, while easements have been accepted by the state on the open
space areas of the valley. Expansion of the district to include the
newly acquired properties will enable the National Trust to fulfill

the goals stated in the Oatlands deed of Gift and assist in the main-
tenance of this historic landscape.

a. Oatland Mills ~

The existing appearance of the mill site consists of brick, stone
fragments and evidence of the mill race. On the east bank of

Goose Creek the fragment of the stone wall measures 150 ft. in
length and 3' to 7' high above the creek bed. The stones are set
without mortar. Stones in the creek bed indicate that the dam
crassed diagonally above the rapids. The mill race from this point
appears along the west side of U. §. Highway 15 and resumes on

the east side diagonally across the original Leesburg-Aldie Turn-
pike, terminating at the mill head. Stone foundations, approximate-~
ly 3'-0" thick stretch 66'-0" along the north bank of the former
creek hed. A fragment of a brick wall bonded every 4th course with
headers stands on the west end of the stone foundation. It is
1'-10" thick, 16'-0" fong. There is evidence of a window Lr-ph
above the stone wall. Thirty-two feet north of this wall parallel
to it is evidence of another stone foundation wall which measures
approximately 38°-0" in length. These dimensions appeat to approxi-
mate the two story section of an early undated photograph. At the
extreme east end of the foundation wall along the creek appears a
definite corner block. Forty-eight feet north of this.corner |
block are fragments of another foundation wall, extending 28'-0
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westward. This evidence seems to indicate that the original ell-

shaped millhouse had overall dimensions approximately 66'-0'" x 48'-0'".

No trace of the original mill equipment remains.

Mountain Gap School

This is a simple one-room rectangular building, 20'-3"" x 30'-3",
excluding the porch and the coal shed. The peak of the gabled
roof which is covered with standing-seam sheet metal is 20'-6' above
the rubble stone foundation wall. The clapboard walls and eave
brackets are painted red. At the entrance on the east is a wood
porch, 6'-5' x 6'-0'" with a wood railing and wood steps and railing
on the north. The 6'-0'" x 8'-0" lean-to on the west has random
width, rough-sawn vertical board siding and a corrugated metal shed
roof. The entrance door on the east contains a pair of wood doors
with five recessed panels. There is a glazed transom with four
lights, 10" x 17", above. The flat trim at the doorway has a
beaded edge, and the transom bar is moulded. High in the gable over
the doorway is a small window with four lights, &' x 10'". On the
north and south walls there are three double-hung wood windows with
six over six lights, 10" x 18", 1In the interior the east end has
been partitioned with T & G beaded vertical siding to create an
apparent hand-wash room on the north and an enclosed coat closet
on the south of the central entrance way. The north, south and
west walls are plastered above a 2'-5" beaded board wainscot and
chair rail. There is a large blackboard of recent vintage above
the chair rail on the west wall, behind the raised teacher's plat-
form, Two smaller blackboards are located betwsen windows on the
north and south wall. There is a coal stove in the center of the
room with a vertical stove pipe up to the chimney. Electricity
has been installed.

Church of Our Savior (Protestant Episcopal)

The original Church was a simple rectangle. According to Mrs.
David E. Finley, (Margaret Eustis} her parents, Mr. and Mrs. William
Corcoran Eustis, added a small rectangular apse with an arched
leaded stained glass window. Later the Choir Dressing Room was added
south of the altar and a small furnace room was added on the north.
Over-all dimensions are now 23'-0" x 33'-0". The rubble stones of
the foundation wall have been dressed to a relatively smooth face
and brought up to window-sill height. A bead of mortar has been

GPO 921.724
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drawn across the irreqgular-sized stones to simulate regular ashlar
coursing. The red brick bearing walls begin with a header course on
the foundation wall. The wood window-sills are set in this header
course. Every sixth course of brick is a header course in the common
bond. The west gable wall incorporated a projecting brick cross,
approximately five feet high. The Choir Room addition is also red
brick. The furnace room is concrete block painted dusty rose. A
concrete stoop with two risers leads up to the wood sill of the en-
trance door on the west. |t should be noted that a small fragment
of a stone block carved into two steps stands free against the south
wall of the church. The entrance doorway on the west consists of
two wood doors, each with two recessed panels, framed by simple
pedimented wood frontispiece attached to the face of the brick wall.
Two 3/4-engaged wood Tuscan Columns on a low modern brick plinth
support the undecorated entablature. The raking cornice is formed
by simple large-scaled crown mouldings. A scrolled iron bracket

is attached to the tympanum. Above the entrance dcorway is a low,
hipped roof, wood belfry surmounted by a cross, painted dark green.
All windows except the stained glass window are wood, double -hung
with nine over nine lights, 12" x 20", lintels are flat radiating
brick arches. There are fixed louvered wood shutters at all double-
hung windows, except that the louvers on the north side have been
replaced by solid wood panels. All are painted dark green. Roofs
over the nave, the lower apse and the Choir Room are gabled and
shingled. The shed roof over the furnace room is also shingled. On
the interior the single space of the nave is entered through a

small narthex which projects into the nave at the west end. The
enclosed winder stairs are located in the northwest corner. Begin-
ning on the north wall of the narthex they rise to the rear gallery,
with sloping floor, supported by two slender Tuscan columms. These
columns rest directly on the wood floor without plinths. The 9'-0"
wide rectangular apse has a plastered barrel-vaulted ceiling. The
arched opening is trimmed by a white flat’wood banding with an
applied wood keystone at the arch and simplified wood Doric pilas~
ters at the sides. The pilasters rest on the wainscot shelf. Edges
of the pilasters and the arched trim are chamfered. The wood floor
of the apse is two risers above the main wood floor. An additional
step leads up to the altar railing and altar. The foundation wall
which projects five inches beyond the plastered interior wall is
faced with beaded vertical T & G wood wainscot with a shelif. Walls
and ceilings are smooth plaster. There is central heating and
electricity, but no plumbing.
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a.

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Datland Mills:

A ledger identified on its spine as U0atlands Mills - G. Carter,"
has entries from the period of Dacemher 1816 ~ September 1825.
This is the only known ledger to have survived. The numerous
accounts offer a picture of George Carter's extensive business
operations and services performed. In addition to the produce
accounts for wheat, flour, corn, rye, bran, and buckwheat,
there are also entries for the following services: grinding plaster,
carding machines, ships stuff, and saw mii}. While the purchase
of a plaster machine in 1809 can be documented, no evidence has
been located concerning the construction of the mill complex. Due
to the extensive plantation operations in the region of Robert Carter,
George Carter's father, it is possible that the building dated from
the last quarter of the eighteenth century.

Oatland Mills was a major destination of the Goose Creek and
Little River Navigation Company. Chartered in 1832 by the General
Assembly, the proposed navigation project was to connect landlocked
portions of Loudoun, Fauquier and Prince William counties with
the Chesapeake and Chio Canal. Recognizing the importance of
the project to his operations, Carter was the largest subscriber,
and thus elected president. Located at the point where the Oat-
lands Road and the Leesburg-Aldie Turnpike crossed Goose Creek,
the mi1] site served as a nucleus about which developed a small
crossroads community. Prior to the destruction of the mill about
1905, there existed a blacksmith shop, the Church of Our Savior,
post office, store and several residences. During the past seventy
years the mill site has been robbed of Its building materials. A
portion of the south wall and foundations remain. Study of the
remaining buildings and an archaeological investigation of the
mil) site will add immeasurably to the interpretation of Oatlands
and the plantation's operation.

Mountain Gap School
The starting point of.a.fecent film produced by the‘Virginia

State Department of Education, the Mountain Gap School was the last
operating one-room school in Loudoun County when closed in 1953,
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Statement of Significance (cont.) P. 2

Although William Carr, James Carr, Robert Fulton, Gustavus Elgin
and David Fulton purchased the property from George Carter in 1827,
Ybeing desirous of building a house by public subscription for holding
and keeping a public school for the education of the youth of the
neighborhood...", the present structure appesars to date from the lTast
quarter of the nipeteenth century. For many years, it ably served the
residents of the Immediate area. Upon closing, the structure was
purchased by one of its most illustrious graduates, Wilbur C. Hall.
Entering the Virginia House of Delegates in 1918, at age 24, he
was, in 1935, the first full-time appointment to the position of
Chairman of the Virginia Conservation Commission. Mrs. Eustis was
a major supporter and intimately involved with her school's activities
until the time of its closing.

Interested in the county's history, Mr. Hall, purchased the school
with the intention of opening it as a museum after Its restoration
to the period of his school days. Presently the building Is equipped
with seven "Orin #2, 1872'" benches and desks, two ""Globe Desks,"”
and an Acme Giant coal stove, model #20, manufactured by Wehrle
Company, Newark, Ohioc. One antique desk remains. The little red

school house with its open public space stands along the side of the

highway as a mute reminder of a bygone era in America's growing public
education system.

c. Church of Our Savior {(Protestant Episcopal)

On 26 March 1875, George Carter, Kate P. Carter, his wife, and
Elizabeth 0. Carter his mother, deeded the church site to John Gilles-
pie, John F. Elgin, John T. lden, Joseph Lewis Harding and Benjamin
G. Carter. These men represented The Protestant Episcopal Congrega-
tion which worshipped in the Oatlands «chapel. According to the Auto-
biography of Rev, Sewall S. Hepburn, an abandoned blacksmith shop

adjacent to the site had been "fitted up for a chapel.' The present
structure, consecrated by the Rt. Rev. Francis M. Whittle on 21}
August 1878, replaced the earlier temporary chapel.

Although built after the Civil War, the church retains a "slave
gallery' above the west entrance supported by two elongated Tuscan
columns. Located adjacent to where the Leesburg-Aldie Turnpike
crossed Goose Creek, the church was part of a small commercial center
consisting of the Oatland Mills, miller's residence, overseer's house,
blacksmith shop, store and post office. In this setting, the simple
unadorned form of the Church of Our Savior served the immediate
community. Recent years have seen a growing concern and active in-
terest on the part of the congregation in the maintenance of its
rural character.
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a. Survey of Goose Creek and the Little River and Beaver
Dam, 1832. Virginia State Archives.

b. Loudoun County, 1853. Yardley Taylor Surveyor. Library

of Congress, Map, Division, Arlington, Va,

c. YSurveys for Military Defences,' Map of N. Eastern Vir-
ginia and Vicinities of Washington, 1862, Library of
Congress, Map Division.

d. Loudoun County-Leesburg District 1880 (?) Library of
Congress, Map Division, Ariington, Va.

Deed Book 578, pages 192-135, Loudoun County Courthouse

Datland Mills Accounts Book, 1816-182k4, National Trust for
Historic Preservation.

Manuscript compiled by Helen H. Marsh, copy of Chap. 5 in
possessing Natlonal Trust for Historic Preservation.
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Deed Book 3P, Pages 249-252, Loudoun County Courthouse
Deed Book 338, pages 95-97, Loudoun County Courthouse
Deed Book 584, pages 456-8, Loudoun County Courthouse
Firm Records, Craig, Wood & Broune, Architects,

6000 Stevenson Ave., Alexandria, Va.

Blue Ridge Herald Newspaper, June 9, 1955, p.9
Superintendant's office, Loudoun County School Board,
Leesburg, Va.
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Deed Book 6 G, pages 334-336, Loudoun County Courthouse
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10. GEOGRAPHICAL DATA

1) Plotting of the property boundaries extends from the Leesburg
Quadrangle (Virginia-Loudoun Co., 7.5 minute series) to the
Lincoln Quadrangle (Virginia-Loudoun Co., 7.5 minute series).

2) The following description includes properties currently owned
by the National Trust for Historic Preservation, under acquisi-
tion by the National Trust, pending easement to the National
Trust and presently under open space easement to the Virginia
Outdoors Foundation.

Beginning at the Northeast corner of the district, the property
line extends WEST along State Rt. 651 crossing Rt. 15 to the
Northwest corner of the Mountain Gap School site; turning to the
WEST-SOUTHWEST the line extends approximately 4300' to the
westernmost point where turning to the SOUTH, the line extends to
the southern edge of State Rt. 733; turning EAST, the line runs
along the south edge of State Rt. 733 to a point slightly west

of Rt. 15 where it turns NORTH for a short distance and then

EAST crossing Rt. 15, omitting three houses at the junction of
Rts. 733 and 15, it proceeds south along the east side of Rt. 15
to the junction of Rts. 15 and 650; where, turning west, it re-
crosses Rt. 15, to the bank of Goose Creek, opposite the junction
of State Rts. 15 and 650; then extending EAST along the north
bank it passes under Rt. 15 to the Oatland Mills site; it turns
NORTH bounded on the east by State Rt. 650, to a point approxi-
mately 150 yards north of BM 3}17 where it turns due North return-
ing to the point of beginning on State Rt. 651 bounded by the
lands of Edgar Young Estate, Kathleen €. England and Melvin Bush;
the whole containing 947 acres, rore or less.
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[10. GEOGRAPHICAL DATA

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES

LATITUDE ANDC LONGIT'IDE COORDINATES

DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROTERTY 0 CEFINING THe CeRTEIR POINt OF A PrOPERTY
R OF LESS THAN TFW ACRES
CORMER] LATITUDE LONGITUDE LATITUDE t ONGITUDE,
Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds
Nw | 39° 03 03" | 77 ° 37 © 3% ° ' : ° ’ )
-] r L] &
NE | 397 03° 03 77 ° 36 © 357
L L} -]
SE [ 397 017 37 77 ° 36 ° 357
S 39.2 o1+ 37~ 77.° 37 ' 33~
APRROXIMA" R
o] TE ACHEAGE OF NOMINATED PF!QPERTY ] 947 (see finn]
fLIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAFPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES
STATE: ] CODE | COUNTY CODE
STATE: CODE | COUNTY: } CODE
v
STATE: COQE | COUNTY: CoDeE
STATE: CODE | COUNTY: CODE

. FORM PREPARED BY .

NAWME AND TITLE!

Woodrow Wilkens, HABS and Thomas M. Slade, Architectural Historian

Washington

ORGANIZATION DATE
National Trust for Hlstorlcal Preservation November 6, 1973
STREET ANOC NUMBER: .
_140-7484Jackson_91ace, N. W,
CITY OR TOWN: STATE CODE

{12

STATE LIMSGN OFFICER. Cé TIFICALION

NATIONAL REGISTER YERIFICATION &

A the designated State Ltaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 {Public l.aw
89.665), T hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and certify that it has been
rvaluated according to the c-iteria and procedures sel
forth by the National Park Service. The recommended
fevel of significance of this nomination is:

National [} State [ Local [

Name

Title

Junius R. Fishburne, Jr., Direct&r
Virginia Historic Landmarks Commjission

Date

I hereby certify that this property is included in the

National Register.

Diirector, Offica of Archeology and Histaric Proservation

Date

ATTEST:

Keeper of The National Register

Date

#r U.5, GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE 3 1973-729-147/1442 3~}
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